Southern Illinois University Carbondale **OpenSIUC**

SIU Bulletins and Course Catalogs

University Archives

1962

1962-1963 Southern Illinois University Bulletin (Financial Assistance)

Southern Illinois University Carbondale

Follow this and additional works at: http://opensiuc.lib.siu.edu/ua bcc

Recommended Citation

, . "1962-1963 Southern Illinois University Bulletin (Financial Assistance)." (Jan 1962).

This Article is brought to you for free and open access by the University Archives at OpenSIUC. It has been accepted for inclusion in SIU Bulletins and Course Catalogs by an authorized administrator of OpenSIUC. For more information, please contact opensiuc@lib.siu.edu.

Southern Illinois University

Bulletin



Financial Assistance

Objectives of Southern Illinois University

TO EXALT BEAUTY

IN GOD,
IN NATURE.
AND IN ART.
TEACHING HOW TO LOVE THE BEST
BUT TO KEEP THE HUMAN TOUCH-

TO ADVANCE LEARNING

IN ALL LINES OF TRUTH
WHEREVER THEY MAY LEAD,
SHOWING HOW TO THINK
RATHER THAN WHAT TO THINK
ASSISTING THE POWERS
OF THE MIND
IN THER SELECTIVELOPMENT

TO FORWARD IDEAS AND IDEALS

IN OUR DEMOCRACY,
INSPIRING RESPECT FOR OTHERS
AS FOR OURSELVES,
EVER PROMOTING FREEDOM
WITH RESPONSIBILITY-

TO BECOME A CENTER OF ORDER AND LIGHT

THAT KNOWLEDGE MAY LEAD TO UNDERSTANDING AND UNDERSTANDING TO WISDOM.

Financial Assistance Announcements for 1962-1963



SOUTHERN ILLINOIS UNIVERSITY BULLETIN Volume 4 Number 7 July, 1962 Second-class postage paid at Carbondale, Illinois. Published by Southern Illinois University, monthly except in September, when published semimonthly.

The following issues of the Southern Illinois University Bulletin may be obtained without charge from General Publications,
Southern Illinois University, Carbondale, Illinois.

General Information Financial Assistance Summer Session (Carbondale) Summer Session (Edwardsville) Schedule of Classes (Carbondale) Schedule of Classes (Edwardsville) General Announcements (Edwardsville) Graduate School College of Education College of Liberal Arts and Sciences School of Agriculture School of Applied Science School of Business School of Communications School of Fine Arts School of Home Economics University Institutes Division of Technical and Adult Education

All intending students should have the General Information bulletin (issued once a year), plus the special bulletins of the various educational units in which they are most interested.

Board of Trustees

	TERM EXPIRES
John Page Wham, Chairman, Centralia	1965
Kenneth L. Davis, Vice-Chairman, Harrisburg	1963
Melvin C. Lockard, Secretary, Mattoon	1965
Martin Van Brown, Carbondale	1967
Harold R. Fischer, Granite City	1963
Arnold H. Maremont, Winnetka	1967
LINDELL W. STURGIS, Metropolis	1965
GEORGE T. WILKINS (Ex-officio), Springfield	
Louise Morehouse, Recorder	

Officers of Instruction

DELYTE W. Morris, President Charles D. Tenney, Vice-President for Instruction

Carbondale Campus

John E. Grinnell.

Vice-President for Operations

William J. McKeefery

Dean of Academic Affairs

Edwardsville Campus

CLARENCE W. STEPHENS
Vice-President for Operations
WILLIAM T. GOING
Dean of Instruction

This Bulletin

describes in detail the financial assistance which is available to undergraduate students at the Carbondale and Edwardsville campuses. (Financial assistance for graduate students is described in the Graduate School bulletin.) It does not cover all questions concerning Southern Illinois University. For complete information about the University, refer to the General Information bulletin.

Table of Contents

University Calendar, 1962–1963	vi
University Calendar, 1963–1964	vii
Financial Assistance	. 1
Types of Assistance	. 2
Application Procedure	. 3
If You Have Not Attended a College or University	. 3
If You Have Attended Another College or University	. 4
If You Are Currently Enrolled at Southern	. 4
Federal Assistance	. 5
National Defense Student Loan Program	. 5
Federal Assistance for Military Veterans	
Public Law 634	. 8
State Assistance	. 8
State Teacher Education Scholarships	. 8
State Scholarship Act	. 9
General Assembly Scholarships	. 9
Vocational Rehabilitation	9
Illinois Military Scholarship	9
The Governor's Committee for Veterans' Rehabilitation and	
Employment	. 10
Nongovernmental Assistance	10
Funds Available to Carbondale Campus Students	10
Funds Available to Edwardsville Campus Students	15

University Calendar, 1962-1963

1962 SUMMER SESSION

Session Begins	Monday, June 18
Independence Day Holiday	Wednesday, July 4
	3 - 2 3
Final Examinations (8-week Session)	
Commencement	Friday, August 10
Final Examinations (Summer Quarter)	Thursday–Friday, August 30–31
Quarter Ends	Friday, August 31

1962 FALL QUARTER

New Student Week	Friday-Sunday, September 21-23
Quarter Begins	Monday, September 24
Thanksgiving Recess	Wednesday, 12 noon-Monday, 8 а.м.
	November 21–26
Final Examinations	Wednesday-Tuesday, December 12-18

1963 WINTER QUARTER

Quarter Begins	Wednesday, January 2
Final Examinations	Wednesday-Tuesday, March 13-19

1963 SPRING QUARTER

Quarter Begins	Wednesday, March 27
Memorial Day Holiday	Thursday, May 30
Final Examinations	Thursday-Wednesday, June 6-12
Commencement (Carbondale)	Thursday, June 13
Commencement (Edwardsville)	Friday, June 14

Summer classes begin on Tuesday, June 19. During the fall, winter, and spring quarters, day classes begin on the second day of the quarter. Evening classes (5:30 p.m. or later) begin on the first day of the quarter.

University Calendar, 1963-1964

1963 SUMMER SESSION

Quarter Begins Monday, June 17
Independence Day Holiday Final Examinations (8-week Session) Wednesday-Thursday, August 7-8
Summer Commencements Friday, August 9
Final Examinations (Summer Quarter) Thursday-Friday, August 29-30
Quarter Ends Friday, August 30

1963 FALL QUARTER

New Student Week
Quarter Begins
Thursday–Saturday, September 19–21
Monday, September 23
Thanksgiving Recess
Wednesday, 12 noon–Monday, 8 A.M.
November 20–25
Final Examinations
Wednesday–Tuesday, December 11–17

1964 WINTER QUARTER

Quarter Begins Thursday, January 2
Final Examinations Wednesday—Tuesday, March 11–17

1964 SPRING QUARTER

Quarter Begins Wednesday, March 25
Memorial Day Holiday Saturday, May 30
Final Examinations Thursday–Wednesday, June 4–10
Commencement (Edwardsville) Thursday, June 11
Commencement (Carbondale) Friday, June 12



Financial Assistance

Co-ordinator (Carbondale) Arthur A. Swanson, M.S. in Ed.
(Southern Illinois) 1959
Assistant Co-ordinator (Carbondale) Mary M. Beimfohr 1957
Supervisor (Edwardsville) Thomas D. Evans, M.S.
(Southern Illinois) 1957

The basic goal of the financial assistance program at Southern Illinois University is to enable talented young men and women who may lack financial resources to enter and continue experiences in higher education. The program has been organized so that it may function as an integral part of the total educational experience of the student. An attempt is made not only to assist needy and deserving students with their financial obligations through the program but to contribute to their general development and learning experience.

The program of financial assistance includes scholarships, awards, prizes, grants-in-aid, private agency awards, and student loan funds.

The comparative limitations of such forms of assistance, in terms of both number and amounts available, make it inadvisable for an undergraduate student to expect to meet all university expenses from such sources. The family, including parents, friends, and relatives, is the primary resource for a student's college costs. The student himself normally supplies one-third to one-half of his finances through work during a selected quarter of nonattendance or during school, and through his savings. The financial assistance program assists in making up the difference between college costs and the student's resources.

The applications for financial assistance require the applicant to estimate his budget for the coming year in terms of both income and expense. An estimate of certain expenses, including room and board, may be obtained from the Admissions Office or from the General Information issue of the Southern Illinois University Bulletin.

TYPES OF ASSISTANCE

SCHOLARSHIPS

Scholastic potential and financial need are the two most important criteria utilized in selecting recipients of scholarships. Freshman applicants must have ranked in the upper third of their graduating class and have achieved a minimum comprehensive high school average equal to that of *B*. Enrolled students at the University must have achieved a minimum overall average of *B* for all course work completed at the university level.

The degree of need may also be used in determining the amount of assistance granted from a particular scholarship fund.

Other factors being equal, the students with the highest grade averages will be given preference in determining recipients of the scholarships.

AWARDS

Financial assistance is occasionally granted to students who have evidenced superior potential either at the high school or the university level in either scholarly or cocurricular endeavors. Freshman applicants for awards are required to have ranked in the upper half of their graduating class and to have achieved a minimum comprehensive high school average of *C*. Enrolled students must have achieved a minimum over-all average of *C* for all work completed at the university level.

As a part of the award program, the Board of Trustees of the University has established tuition awards known as Southern Illinois University Scholarship and Activity Awards. Normally, this is the only form of scholarship or award assistance for which entering students may be considered other than state-wide programs as enumerated on pages 8–10 of this bulletin.

PRIZES

Prizes may be awarded to students who have evidenced superior achievement in specific areas or departments of the University. These prizes frequently take the form of books, medals, or trophies rather than money and are presented at various times during the year. Eligibility varies considerably from one prize to another. Interested students are invited to contact the specific departments or groups concerned with selecting the recipients for further details.

GRANTS-IN-AID

Frequently, organizations or individuals establish funds at the University to assist certain students with their educational expenses. Usually

such students are selected by the donor, although recommendations are sometimes made through the Scholarships and Loans Committee or the various departments of the University. Specific criteria, including grade requirements, used for the selection of recipients of these grants are established by the donor.

PRIVATE AGENCY AWARDS

Industries and private organizations may provide funds to individuals either directly or through the Scholarships and Loans Committee. The requirements relative to each of these awards are specified by the individual donors. Generally, application must be made directly to the donor; the University will assist interested students in applying for such awards.

STUDENT LOAN FUNDS

Through the generosity of friends of the University, several short-term loan funds have been established to be used by needy and deserving students. There are two basic requirements which are applicable to most of these funds: The applicant must be a full-time student who has completed one quarter in attendance at the University, and he must have a minimum comprehensive university average of C. Amounts available vary with the individual loan funds. Generally, freshmen and sophomores may borrow up to \$75; juniors, seniors, and graduate students are permitted to borrow up to \$150. In addition, a private foundation has established a loan fund at the University from which qualified juniors and seniors under 25 years of age may borrow up to \$600. The rate of interest and method of repayment vary with the particular loan fund, but the usual rate of interest on funds administered directly by the University is three per cent per year.

APPLICATION PROCEDURE

IF YOU HAVE NOT ATTENDED A COLLEGE OR UNIVERSITY

- 1. Apply for admission to the Admissions Office of the campus you plan to attend. Request that your principal forward a transcript of your high school record through your seventh semester. It is advisable that this be done shortly after the beginning of your final semester of high school.
- 2. Request an application for the financial assistance program from the Student Affairs Office of the campus you plan to attend. Request that your high school principal complete the postal card accompanying this application. Arrange to take the test battery administered by the American College Testing Program (A.C.T.); information relative to testing dates may be obtained from your high school guidance director or principal or from the Registrar's Office of the campus which you plan to attend.

- 3. Submit your application for financial assistance. Do not apply for a specific scholarship or award. The Scholarships and Loans Committee of the University will evaluate each applicant in terms of his eligibility for all forms of available assistance. Applications to be considered for the fall quarter must be returned to the Student Affairs Office of the appropriate campus between January 1 and March 15.
- 4. Applicants for assistance to become effective in the fall will be notified of decisions concerning their applications during the summer prior to the opening of the fall quarter.

IF YOU HAVE ATTENDED ANOTHER COLLEGE OR UNIVERSITY

- 1. Apply for admission to the Admissions Office of the campus you plan to attend. Request that the registrar of each school you have attended send a transcript of your record to that office. Applications for financial assistance cannot be considered prior to completion of these procedures.
- 2. Request an application for the financial assistance program from the Student Affairs Office of the campus you plan to attend.
- 3. Submit your application for financial assistance. Do not apply for a specific scholarship or award. The Scholarships and Loans Committee of the University will evaluate each applicant in terms of his eligibility for all forms of available assistance. Applications to be considered for the fall quarter must be returned to the Student Affairs Office of the appropriate campus between January 1 and March 15.
- 4. Applicants for assistance to become effective in the fall will be notified of decisions concerning their applications during the summer prior to the opening of the fall quarter.

IF YOU ARE CURRENTLY ENROLLED AT SOUTHERN

- 1. Determine whether or not you meet the minimum requirement for any of the forms of financial assistance currently available. Generally, scholarships require a minimum over-all university average of *B*, and awards require a *C*. Consult the earlier sections of this bulletin for details.
- 2. Obtain an application for the financial assistance program from the Student Affairs Office of the campus you are attending.
- 3. Submit your application for financial assistance. Do not apply for a specific scholarship or award. The Scholarships and Loans Committee of the University will evaluate each applicant in terms of his eligibility for all forms of available assistance. Applications to be considered for the fall quarter must be returned to the Student Affairs Office of the appropriate campus between January 1 and March 15.
- 4. Applicants for assistance to become effective in the fall will be notified of decisions concerning their applications during the summer prior to the opening of the fall quarter.

In addition to the various forms of financial assistance administered through the Scholarships and Loans Committee, there are several other forms of assistance available to students at the University. Their descriptions follow.

FEDERAL ASSISTANCE

NATIONAL DEFENSE STUDENT LOAN PROGRAM

The National Defense Student Loan Program, established under Title II of the National Defense Education Act of 1958, is a long-term loan program from which eligible and deserving students may be granted substantial loans to supplement other income for educational purposes.

Eligibility and Terms

- 1. United States Nationals. Only undergraduate or graduate students who are United States Nationals (citizens or persons who are in the U.S. in a permanent resident status) are eligible to borrow under terms of this student loan program.
- 2. Full-time Student. To be approved for a loan, an applicant either must have been accepted for enrollment at Southern Illinois University as a full-time student or, if already attending the University, must be a full-time student (registered for a minimum of twelve quarter hours) who is making normal and satisfactory progress toward a baccalaureate or advanced degree. A student who attends the University part-time, or who attends summer sessions only, is not eligible.
- 3. Scholarship. An incoming freshman applicant must have ranked in the upper third of his graduating class to be considered for loan assistance. A freshman not meeting this requirement may make application during his first quarter of attendance and if academically eligible as noted below will receive payment at the beginning of the following quarter. The university scholastic requirement for a loan is a cumulative grade point average of at least 3.0 and a cumulative average of at least 3.0 for all work at Southern.
- 4. Need. The primary condition of eligibility is the applicant's need of the requested loan to complete his course of study. The financial capabilities of both the applicant and his family (even in the case of a married student) will be evaluated in determining need. The University appreciates the fact that some students may wish to be financially independent, but this in and of itself does not justify need. A single student owning or possessing an automobile is requested not to seek assistance through this fund.
- 5. Amount of Loan. The amount of the loan shall not be more than the borrower actually needs to make up the difference between his re-

sources and his college-related expenses. In view of the estimated expenses at Southern and the opportunity for part-time employment and scholar-ship and award aid, the normal maximum loan will be limited to \$200 per quarter distributed on a quarterly basis. Whatever the actual need, the Act sets maximum limits of \$1,000 in any one academic year and \$5,000 in the aggregate.

- 6. Use of Loan. A National Defense Student Loan will be used only for university-related expenses: tuition and required fees, books and supplies, room and board, ordinary and necessary personal maintenance. It shall not be used for car payments, marriage expenses, refinancing accumulated debts, moving to a place of employment, buying equipment to start a business, or buying a house.
- 7. Special Consideration. While making loans available to needy students in any field, the Act specifies that "in the selection of students to receive loans . . . special consideration shall be given to: (a) students with a superior academic background who express a desire to teach in elementary and secondary schools, and (b) students whose academic background indicates a superior capacity or preparation in science, mathematics, engineering, and modern foreign language."
- 8. Promissory Note. The borrower shall be required to sign a promissory note payable to Southern Illinois University.
- 9. Interest. No interest is charged while the borrower is in full-time attendance at an institution of higher education or during any period, not exceeding three years, that he is serving in the armed forces of the United States. Simple interest at the rate of three per cent per year on the unpaid balance will begin to accrue one year from the date the borrower ceases to be a full-time student.
- 10. Repayment. Repayment must begin not later than two years after a borrower ceases to be a full-time student at an institution of higher education. A schedule of installment payments commensurate with the borrower's financial status must be arranged at the time of his separation from the University. Repayment in accordance with a ten-year schedule of graduated periodic installments is the maximum permissible under terms of the Act.
- 11. Cancellation Provisions. The loan, and interest thereon, of any borrower who serves as a full-time teacher in a public elementary or secondary school is canceled up to a maximum of fifty per cent, at the rate of ten per cent of the amount of the loan plus interest thereon, which was unpaid on the first day of such service, for each academic year of service. The Act also provides that liability for repayment of the National Defense Student Loan is cancelled upon the death of the borrower, or in the event that he becomes totally and permanently disabled.

- 12. Loyalty Oath and Affidavit. Each approved recipient of a loan must subscribe to an oath of allegiance to the United States of America and must sign an affidavit that he does not believe in, and is not a member of an organization that believes in or teaches, the overthrow of the United States government by force or violence or by any illegal or unconstitutional methods.
- 13. Married Students. Undergraduate couples married less than one year at the time the first payment of the loan request would be due are ineligible for loan consideration. Married students applying for loans offer a unique problem of need assessment, because many extra expenses considered minimum for married status are difficult to classify as college-related expenses. Ordinarily, need will be measured on a standard of expectation of family-help and self-help along with the student's own presentation of his problem and estimated need.
- 14. Applications. Application forms may be obtained at the Student Financial Assistance Center in the Student Affairs Office. These applications should be returned to this office after being carefully and completely prepared by the applicant. Blank items will delay action on the application. The applicant will be informed of the Scholarships and Loans Committee's decision within a reasonable period.

FEDERAL ASSISTANCE FOR MILITARY VETERANS

Educational benefits for most veterans of World War II have elapsed. A person having a service-incurred disability may qualify as a recipient of benefits under Public Law 16 or 894, the latter being an amendment to Public Law 16. Public Law 16 is intended for veterans who received their disability between September 16, 1940, and July 25, 1947, while Public Law 894 is intended for veterans who received their disability between June 27, 1950, and an unestablished date in the future. Under Public Laws 16 or 894 the veteran's tuition, fees, special equipment and supplies, and subsistence will be paid for by the United States government through the Veterans Administration.

Persons who have been in active military service between June 27, 1950, and January 31, 1955, who have served at least ninety days, and who have been discharged under conditions other than dishonorable may be eligible for educational benefits under the Veterans Readjustment Assistance Act of 1952 (Public Law 550 or "Korean G.I. Bill"). Application forms and additional information concerning these benefits may be obtained from the Registrar's Office, the Student Affairs Office, the Veterans Administration, or the local Illinois Veterans Commission Office. Veterans are urged to apply for training at least two months prior to enrolling in the University.

Experience has shown that a period of two or three months elapses before a veteran participating in such a program receives his first check. It is advisable, therefore, that each veteran be prepared to finance himself during his first two or three months of attendance at the University.

PUBLIC LAW 634

Benefits under Public Law 634 are available to the child or children of a person who died of an injury or disease incurred or aggravated in the line of duty in active service in the armed forces during World War I, World War II, or the Korean conflict and whose service did not terminate under dishonorable conditions. In addition, if the veteran's child served on active duty with the armed forces he must have been separated under conditions other than dishonorable.

Payments cannot be made while the veteran's child is serving on a tour of duty with the armed forces. In general the same rules apply to this law as to Public Law 550. Application forms may be obtained at the Registrar's Office, the Veterans Administration, or the local Illinois Veterans Commission Office.

STATE ASSISTANCE

STATE TEACHER EDUCATION SCHOLARSHIPS

State scholarships are awarded each year through the office of the State Superintendent of Public Instruction to selected students who plan to enter the teaching profession. Graduates of recognized high schools who are in the upper half of their graduating classes are certified by the principals to county superintendents, who transmit these names to the Superintendent of Public Instruction. The Superintendent, in turn, may award scholarships to the highest-ranking graduates who signify their intentions to prepare to teach in the Illinois public schools. The scholarship covers the student's tuition and activity fees. Holders of these scholarships must apply for admission to the University not later than August 15 of the year in which the scholarship is awarded. Such a student must be registered in a teacher training program while using the scholarship. If a scholarship holder does not register for the next regular quarter following receipt of the scholarship, or if, having registered, he withdraws from the University, he forfeits his scholarship. Any student holding a scholarship who needs a leave of absence for the purpose of earning funds to defray his expenses while in attendance, on account of illness, or because of entrance into military service, may be granted such leave and allowed a period not to exceed six years in which to complete his course at the University. Request for a leave of absence should be addressed to the Registrar. A forfeited scholarship may be issued to the next highest-ranking student as shown on the list submitted to the Superintendent of Public Instruction. Recipients need to bring their scholarships to the Registrar's Office where they are kept on file. Currently, this scholarship covers tuition, student activity fee, and graduation fee.

STATE SCHOLARSHIP ACT

The state scholarship program is applicable at Southern Illinois University. This scholarship exempts the student from certain fees. Interested students should consult their local high school office early in their senior year for complete information on the program.

Holders of state scholarships on the Carbondale Campus have a special adviser to assist them in arranging programs best suited to their needs. On the Edwardsville Campus, the supervisor of student affairs at each center performs the advisory function.

GENERAL ASSEMBLY SCHOLARSHIPS

Each member of the General Assembly (Senator or Representative) may nominate annually two persons of school age and otherwise eligible, from his district, one of which shall receive a certificate of scholarship in the University of Illinois, and the other a certificate of scholarship in any other state-supported university designated by the member. Interested students planning to attend Southern Illinois University should contact their Senator or Representative. This scholarship exempts the student from the paying of tuition, student activity fee, and graduation fee.

VOCATIONAL REHABILITATION

Under the State Board for Vocational Education is a division for the vocational rehabilitation and placement in remunerative employment of persons whose capacity to earn a living is or has been impaired. This includes those with physical handicaps of various kinds. Approved students receive all registration and tuition fees, book rental, and school supplies for nine months per year.

Persons who wish to consult with a representative may call at the Carbondale Field Office located at 416 South Illinois Avenue. Students from other parts of the state who are now receiving training through the State of Illinois Division of Vocational Rehabilitation may consult any representative of the Board.

ILLINOIS MILITARY SCHOLARSHIP

Any person who served in the armed forces of the United States during World War I or World War II (including all service between Septem-

ber 16, 1940, and an undetermined date to be established in the future) may be eligible for the benefits of the Illinois Military Scholarship. To be eligible a person must have been (1) a resident of Illinois at the time of entering the service; or, if not an Illinois resident, a student at Illinois State Normal University, Northern Illinois University, Eastern Illinois University, Western Illinois University, Southern Illinois University, or the University of Illinois at the time of his enlistment or induction; and (2) honorably discharged or separated.

This scholarship is awarded for four calendar years or for sufficient time to enable the veteran to complete his course of study provided this time does not exceed four calendar years. It may be used for resident or off-campus study and covers tuition, activity fee, and graduation fee. Application for this scholarship should be directed to the Registrar's Office and must be accompanied by a copy of the discharge or separation papers. Award will be made only to veterans possessing all necessary entrance requirements.

After a veteran has been awarded a scholarship, he must use it on a continuing basis. Any period of absence not covered by an approved leave of absence will result in the loss of the scholarship. Leaves may be granted for a maximum of two years for reasons of illness, to earn funds to defray expenses while in attendance, or to enter military service. Requests for leaves of absence should be directed to the Registrar's Office.

THE GOVERNOR'S COMMITTEE FOR VETERANS' REHABILITATION AND EMPLOYMENT

This committee will assist any veterans, but gives aid primarily to ex-servicemen and ex-servicewomen with impaired health or with limited physical abilities. Such persons may receive, at state expense, vocational training and education, plus health restoration treatments and prosthetic appliances. After proper training, they are given assistance in obtaining employment.

NONGOVERNMENTAL ASSISTANCE

Carbondale Campus

FUNDS FOR WHICH RECIPIENTS ARE SELECTED BY THE SCHOLARSHIPS AND LOANS COMMITTEE OF THE UNIVERSITY

Alpha Delta Sigma Advertising Scholarship Borden Freshman Prize Carbondale Council of Garden Clubs Award Dr. James W. Barrow Memorial Scholarship Donald Forsythe Unit No. 514 Scholarship (American Legion Auxiliary)

Educational Council of One Hundred Awards

Epsilon Lambda Award (Delta Theta Tau Sorority)

Floyd Wakeland Memorial Award (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Foundation Endowment Scholarship Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Francis M. Hewitt, Sr. Scholarship in Art (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Frank Galbreath Fund

Gloria Credi Memorial Scholarship (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Herrin Textile Workers Union Scholarship (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Illinois Congress of Parents and Teachers Association Scholarship Illinois Congress of Parents and Teachers Special Education Scholarship

Jackson County Alumni Club Scholarship

James H. Stoever Memorial Fund for Retarded Children

Johnson Foundation Chemistry Scholarship

June Vick Memorial Scholarship

Junior Women's Clubs of Illinois Award

Larry Mann Advertising Scholarship

Leah M. Reef Memorial Scholarship (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Leo Kaplan Memorial Scholarship (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Limerick Finance Scholarship

Longenecker Award Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Miller, Natowitz, Paris Memorial Scholarship (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Mu Phi Epsilon Music Award (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Pi Kappa Sigma Memorial Alumnae Scholarship (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Presser Foundation Music Scholarship

Roscoe Pulliam Memorial Alumni Scholarship

Sahara Coal Company Awards in Forestry

Saluki Award Fund

Small Business Institute Scholarship Fund

Southern Illinois District Council Activity Awards

Southern Illinois Symphony Orchestra Awards

Southern Illinois University Scholarship and Activity Awards

Southern Illinois University Faculty Mine Memorial Scholarship

Southern Illinois University Student Refugee Fund Award

Thelma Louise Kellogg Scholarship (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Transportation Club of Little Egypt Award

Washington County H.I.A. Honor Award

Western Electric Scholarship

William C. Ballowe, Jr., Award in Physics Endowment Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Women's Physical Education Award

Woody Hall Scholarship

FUNDS ADMINISTERED BY THE UNIVERSITY FOR WHICH RECIPIENTS ARE SELECTED BY THE DONOR

Abbott Foundation Grant-in-Aid

Aileen S. Andrew Grant-in-Aid

Albert Malsin Scholarship

Alcoa Foundation Scholarship Fund

Alpha Phi Omega Scholarship (Zeta Nu Chapter)

American Chemical Society Fellow

American Chemical Society Scholar

American Legion, Department of Illinois Prize

Arden Shore Scholarship Fund

Asian Studies Scholarship

Aviston Chamber of Commerce Scholarship

Bellevue Scholarship

Betty Skinner Fund

Beverly Hills University Club Scholarship

Bluff City P.T.A. Council Scholarship

B'nai Brith Federation Scholarship Exchange

Boosters Club of Hinsdale Township High School Scholarship

C. H. Roper Grant-in-Aid

Cahokia Commonfields High School Student Council Grant

Carbondale Community High School Parents and Teachers Association Scholarship

Carmi Elks Lodge No. 1652 Award

Charles W. Bushnell Memorial Scholarship

Cook Foundation Scholarship

Cummins Engine Foundation Matching Distributorship Scholarship Program Cunningham Electric Company Recognition of Excellence Grant

Dan Hopkins Advertising Scholarship

David J. Carver, Jr. Memorial Scholarship

Design Initiative Award

Eastern Star of Illinois Grant-in-Aid

Edna C. Schulz Memorial Fund Grant-in-Aid

Edward Arthur Mellinger Educational Foundation Fund

Edward C. Jenkins Scholarship Fund

Eleanor P. Eells Scholarship

Elijah P. Lovejoy Scholarship Grant

Elks National Foundation

Evanston Kiwanis Club Award

Fansteel Employer Scholarship

Frank Grannett Newspaperboy Scholarship

George M. Pullman Educational Foundation

Gold Seal Scholarship

Granite City Scholarship Foundation

Helen Schuman Graduate Scholarship

Highland Park High School Scholarship

Illinois Association of Park Districts Award

Illinois Elks Association Scholarship Fund

Illinois Farm Supply Company Award

Illinois Health Improvement Association Scholarship

Illinois Production Credit Association Award

Joe Dougherty and Don Cross Award

John Doyle Scholarship Foundation Award

Joliet Township High School and Junior College Scholarship

Journal Star Scholarship Fund

Junior Achievement Award

Liberty Baptist Church Scholarship Council Award

Lillian Burns Music Scholarship Fund (Southern Illinois University Foundation)

Little Rock Nine Scholarship

Mary Louise Barnes Alumnae Scholarship in Home Economics

Mascoutah, Illinois P.T.A. Award

Mount Olive Association Scholarship

Mount Vernon Township High School Activities Scholarship

Murphysboro B.P.O.E. No. 572 Scholastic Scholarship

Murphysboro Shrine Club Scholarship

National Science Foundation Fellowship for Graduate Study

Newspapers Distributors Association of Chicago Scholarship

North Chicago High School Community Scholarship

Prairie Farmer Publishing Company Scholarship in Agricultural Journalism

Roman Cultural Society Grant-in-Aid

Southern Illinois Editorial Association Award—Community Journalism

Southern Illinois Reunion Council Award

Study Culture Club Award

The General Henry H. Arnold Educational Fund Grant-in-Aid

Tri-County Electric Cooperative Scholarship Award

Twenty-second District Junior Illinois Federation of Women's Clubs Award of Excellence Fund

University Women's Club Award

Washington Street Baptist Church Grant

West Frankfort Business and Professional Women's Club Award Women's Relief Corps, G.A.R.

PRIZES

Alpha Lambda Delta Award

American Association of Teachers of Spanish and Portuguese, Bronze Medal

American Association of University Professors Scholarship

American Guild of Musical Artists Award

Betty Rhodes Scholarship Award (Alpha Gamma Delta)

Elementary Education Prize

Floyd Wakeland Memorial Award in Music

Illinois Beta Association of Phi Beta Kappa Commencement Prize

Interstate Conference Scholastic-Athletic Award

Janice Neckers Memorial Scholarship (Sigma Sigma Sigma)

Kappa Omicron Phi Award

Mallarmé Prize in French Studies

Norman Caldwell Prize in History

Phi Eta Sigma Faculty Adviser's Award

Phi Eta Sigma Scholarship Prize

Philosophy Prize

Physical Education Honor Award

Pi Omega Pi Award for Outstanding Achievement in Business Education

Sigma Pi Memorial Fund

St. Louis County Alumnae Mu Phi Epsilon Music Award

United Business Education Association Award

Wall Street Journal Achievement Award

Zoology Achievement Award

STUDENT LOAN FUNDS

Altrusa Club Student Loan Fund

Carbondale Branch AAUW Loan Fund

Carbondale Business and Professional Women's Club Loan Fund

Carbondale Rotary Club Student Loan Fund

Douglas Lawson Memorial Loan Fund

Faculty-Staff Aid to Students

General Student Loan Fund

General University and Men's Residence Halls Emergency Loan Fund

Harrisburg Women's Club Student Loan Fund

Harwood Hall Student Loan Fund

Helen A. Shuman Memorial Fund

Henry Strong Educational Foundation Loan Fund

Householder's Loan Fund

Illinois Congress of Parents and Teachers Loan Fund

Illinois Health Improvement Association Loan Fund

Interfraternity Council Student Loan Fund

Jane Holloway Loan Fund

Lionel Picheny Memorial Loan Fund

Lucy K. Woody Student Loan Fund

Malvine Beck Educational Student Loan Fund

Marion Business and Professional Women's Club Loan Fund

Mary M. Steagall Memorial Student Loan Fund

Men's Residence Halls Loan Fund

Pearle Sherman Student Loan Fund

Printing Service Loan Fund

Senior Class of 1962 Loan Fund

Southern Illinois University Women's Club Loan Fund

Southern Illinois University Alumni Association Student Loan Fund

William and Mary Gersbacher Student Loan Fund

William McAndrew Memorial Student Loan Fund

W. O. Brown Student Loan Fund

W. W. Vandeveer Student Loan Fund

25th District Illinois Federation of Women's Clubs Student Loan Fund

Edwardsville Campus

Alton Branch American Association of University Women

Alton Chapter—National Secretaries Association

Association on American Indian Affairs Scholarship Fund

Elijah P. Lovejoy Memorial Grant

First Corinthian Baptist Church Fund
Foundation General Scholarship Fund
Granite City Scholarship Foundation, Inc.
Illinois Association of Colored Women Scholarship Fund
Maclellan Foundation Fund
Petty Loan Fund
Southern Illinois University Scholarship and Activity Award
Sue McLaughlin Memorial Fund
United Presbyterian Church in U.S.A. Grant
Wood River District Baptist Scholarship Fund



Southern Illinois University Foundation

The Southern Illinois University Foundation is a nonprofit corporation chartered by the state and authorized by the Board of Trustees to receive gifts for the benefit of the University, to buy and sell property, and otherwise

to serve the University.

It respectfully asks alumni and other citizens of Southern Illinois to consider making gifts and bequests to benefit the University. Such gifts should be conveyed to the Foundation, with proper stipulation as to their uses. The Foundation, through its officers and members, will be glad to confer with intending donors regarding suitable clauses to insert in wills and suitable forms of gifts and memorials, including bequests by means of life insurance. Large or small gifts to the library will be appreciated; likewise, gifts for special equipment, buildings, endowment of professorships in particular subjects, gifts to student loan funds and scholarship funds, gifts for the use of foreign students, and endowments for particular sorts of research. Any gifts or bequests can be given suitable memorial names.

The staff members of the Foundation are

Mr. Kenneth R. Miller, Executive Director, Carbondale, Illinois

Mrs. Lois H. Nelson, Secretary, Carbondale, Illinois

Mr. Robert L. Gallegly, Treasurer, Carbondale, Illinois

Mr. C. Eugene Peebles, Assistant Treasurer, Edwardsville, Illinois

Mr. C. Richard Gruny, Legal Counsel, Carbondale, Illinois

Mr. L. James Struif, Assistant Legal Counsel, Edwardsville, Illinois

Mr. Donald Leavitt, Patent Counsel, St. Louis, Missouri

Mr. Warren Stookey, Field Representative, Edwardsville, Illinois.

